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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

ARTHUR STRAUSSER )
and )
NELSON LUZZETTI )
on behalf of themselves and all others )
similarly situated );
) C.A. No.
Plaintiffs, , )

vS. )

| )

ACE RECEIVABLES MANAGEMENT, INC., )
)

)

)

)

d/b/a AFFILIATED COLLECTION BUREAU
CLASS ACTION

Defendant.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

COMPLAINT - CLASS ACTION

I. Preliminary Statement

1. This is a consumer class action brought on behalf of consumers subjected to
Defendant’s violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq.
(“FDCPA”). This law prohibits debt collectors from engaging in abusive, deceptive and unfair
collection practices.

II. Jurisdiction and Venue

2, Jurisdiction of this Court arises under 15 U.$.C. § 1681p, 28 US.C. §1331, 1337.
3. Venue lies properly in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).

II.  Parties

4, Plaintiff Arthur Strausser (hereafter “Strausser”) is an adult individual who
resides at 3105 Friendship Street, Philadelphia, PA 19149.

5. Plaintiff Nelson Luzzetti (hereafter “Luzzetti”) is an adult individual who resides

at 504 Passaic Avenue, Phillipsburg, NJ 03865.
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6. Defendant ACB Receivables Management, Inc., d/b/a Affiliated Collection
Bureau is a business entity regularly engaged in the business of collecting debis in this
Commonwealth with its principal place of business located at 19 Main Street, Asbury Park, NI
07712. The principal purpose of Defendant is the collection of debts using the mails and
telephone, and Defendant regularly attempts to collect debts alleged to be due another.

IV. Factual Allegations

7. Defendant reports its collection accounts to national consumer reporting agencies,
such as Trans Union, LLC, Experian Information Solutions and Equnifax Information Services,
Inc, (the “CRAs™).

8. As a debt collector regulated by the FDCPA, Defendant is legally required to
communicate to the CRAs that a collection account is “disputed” when it is notified that a
consumer disputes the validity of the debt or the accuracy of the collection account information
that the Defendant has reported.

9. However, as a matter of policy, Defendant does not mark the debts and/or
collection accounts it reports to the CRAs as disputed after being notified of a consumer dispute
from a CRA.

10.  When a consumer disputes a debt or collection account to a CRA, the CRA is
required, among other things, to notify the debt collector of the dispute and provide it with all
relevant information regarding the dispute. Pursuant to the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15U.8.C.
§§ 1681 et seq., as amended (“FCRA”), once a notice of dispute has been received by the debt
collector, the debt collector is required to, among other actions, perform the following tasks: a)
conduct an investigation regarding the disputed information, b) review all relevant information

provided by the CRA, and c) report the results of the investigation to the CRA. 15 U.5.C. § 1681
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s-(2)(b).

11. Additidnally, pursuant to the FDCPA, once an alleged debt has been disputed by a
consumer, for whatever reason, the debt collector must report “that a disputed debt is disputed.”
15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(8). Defendant fails to comply with this legal requirement.

12.  Defendant’s unlawful conduct exacts harm on consumers, Under most credit-
scoring models, a collection account will negatively impact a consumer’s credit score.
Conversely, when such an account is marked as disputed, it has no negative impact on the
consumer’s credit score and/or is not scored as all.

13.  Defendant is a “debt collector” as defined by 15 U.8.C. § 1692a(6) of the
FDCPA.

14.  Upon Information and belief, Defendant receives hundreds if not thousands of
disputes from consumers stating that the tradeline(s) Defendant is reporting on the individual’s
credit reports are inaccurate,

15.  Defendant’s practice and policy, upon completion of its “investigation,” is to
report the results to the CRA(s) without updating the tradeline to report as “disputed.”

16.  The experience of Plaintiffs demonstrates Defendant’s practice.

17.  Plaintiff Luzzetti viewed his consumer report from Experian in or about
November 2005. After examining his consumer report, Plaintiff Luzzetti learned that Defendant
was reporting false and derogatory information about him, namely that Plaintiff had a derogatory
account with Warren Hospital. Accordingly, Plaintiff Luzzetti immediately disputed the
accuracy of the account.

18. On or about December 10, 2005, Experian sent Plaintiff Luzzetti a revised

consumer disclosure that described the results of his dispute regarding the account with
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Defendant. The Experian disclosure revealed that the Defendant had verified the account as
accurate and failed to mark the account as “disputed.”

19.  Plaintiff Strausser viewed his consumer report from Equifax in or abqut August
2006. After examining his consumer report, Plaintiff Strausser learned that Defendant was
reporting false and derogatory information about him, namely that Plaintiff Strausser had a
derogatory account with Trinity Imaging. Accordingly, Plaintiff Strausser immediately disputed
the accuracy of the account.

20.  On or about September 2006, Equifax sent Plaintiff Strausser a revised consumer
disclosure that described the results of his dispute regarding the account with Defendant. The
Equifax disclosure revealed that the Defendant verified the account as accurate and failed to
mark the account as “disputed.”

71.  Defendant did not mark the debt as “disputed” to either Experian or Equifax, nor
did Defendant otherwise mark the debt as “disputed.”

22. At all times pertinent hereto, Defendant was acting by and through its agents,
servants and/or employees who were acting within the course and scope of their agency or
employment, and under the direct supervision and control of the Defendant herein,

23, As a result of Defendant’s unlawful practice, Plaintiffs have suffered damages,
including but not limited to, a reduction of their credit score.

V. Class Allegations

24.  Plaintiffs bring this action individually and as a class action, pursuant to
Rules 23(a) and 23(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of the following Class:
All consumers in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the State of New Jersey for whom,

following its receipt of a dispute from a consumer reporting agency, Defendant failed to mark an
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account as disputed during the period beginning one year prior to the filing of this action and up
through the date of judgment.

25.  The Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. Although
the precise number of Class members is known only to Defendant, Plaintiffs aver upon
information and belief that Defendant handles hundreds if not thousands of consumer disputes
and investigations and that Defendant’s uniform practice and procedure is not to list the account
as “disputed” following such investigations. Accordingly, Plaintiffs estimate that the class size
numbers in the hundreds, if not thousands.

26.  There are questions of law and fact common to the Class that predominate over
any questions affecting only individual Class members. The principal question is whether the
Defendant violated the FDCPA by failing to list an account as disputed following a consumer
dispute received from a CRA.

27.  Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the Class, which all arise from the
same operative facts and are based on the same legal theories.

78, Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class. Plaintiffs are
committed to vigorously litigating this matter and has retained counsel experienced in handling
class actions and claims involving unlawful business practices. Neither Plaintiffs nor their
counsel have any interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this claim.

99, This action should be maintained as a class action because the prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the Class would create a risk of inconsistent or
varying adjudications with respect to individual members which would establish incompatible
standards of conduct for the parties opposing the Class, as well as a risk of adjudications with

respect to individual members which would as a practical matter be dispositive of the interests of
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other members not parties to the adjudications or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

30.  Whether Defendant unlawfully failed to list an account as disputed as to Plaintiffs
and the Class can be easily determined by a ministerial inspection of Defendant’s business
records,

31, A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
controversy. The interest of Class members in individually controlling the prosecution of
separate claims against Defendant is slight because actual damages of being improperly charged
for a consumer report are relatively small, and the maximum statutory damages are limited to
$1,000.00 under the FDCPA. Management of the Clﬁss claims is likely to present significantly
fewer difficulties than those presented in many individual claims. The identities of the Class
members may be obtained from Defendant’s records.

Count One - FDCPA

32.  Plaintiffs incorporate the foregoing paragraphs as though the same were set forth
at lengtﬁ herein.

33, Defendant is a “debt collector” as defined by section 1692a(6) of the FDCPA.

34.  Plaintiffs are “consumers” as defined by section 1692a(3) of the FDCPA.

35,  The above disputes by Plaintiffs and the reporting of the inaccurate information to
credit reporting agencies by Defendant are “communications™ relating to a “debt” as defined by
sections 1692a(2) and 1692a(5) of the FDCPA.

36.  Any alleged debts at issue arose out of a transaction which was primarily for

personal, family or household purposes.
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37.  Defendant violated the FDCPA. Defendant’s violations include, but are not
limited to, violations of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e, 1692¢(8), 1692e(10), and 1692f, as evidenced by
the following conduct:

a) Communicating or threatening to communicate to any person credit
information which is known or which should be known to be false, including the failure to
communicate that a disputed debt is disputed; and |

b) ‘Otherwise using false, deceptive, misleading and unfair or unconscionable
means to collect or attempt to collect a debt from the Plaintiffs.

38 Defendant’'s acts as described above were done intentional and negligent
disregard for Plaintiffs’ rights under the law and with the purpose of coercing Plaintiffs to pay
monies relating to the inaccurate information.

39, As a result of the above violations of the FDCPA, Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs
in the sum of Plaintiffs’ statutory damages, actual damages and attorney's fees and costs

V1. Jury Trial Demand
40.  Plaintiffs demand trial by jury on all issues so triable.
VIL. Prayer For Relief

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray that relief be granted as follows:

(2)  That an order be entered certifying the proposed Class under Rule 23 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and appointing Plaintiffs and their counsel to represent the
Class;

(b)  That an order be entered declaring that Defendant’s actions as described

above are in violation of the FDCPA;
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(c)  That judgment be entered against Defendant for actual damages, pursuant
to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(1);

(d)  That judgment be entered against Defendant for statutory damages
pursuant to 15 U.8.C. § 1692k(2)(2)(A) and (B);

(¢)  That the Court award costs and reasonable attorneys® fees, pursuant to 15
U.8.C. § 1692k(2)(3); and

£ That the Court grant such other and further relief as may be just and

proper.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

FRANCIS & MAILMAN, P.C,

OHN SOUMILAS
ICHAEL J. SZYMBORSKI
Land Title Building, 19" Floor
100 South Broad Street
Philadelphia, PA 19110
(215) 735-8600

DONOVAN SEARLES, LLC
DAVID A. SEARLES

1845 Walnut Street Suite 1100
Philadelphia, PA 19103

(215) 732-6067

Attorneys for Plaintiffs and the Class

DATE: November 17, 2006



